THE CONVENIENCE SHOP (HOLDING) PLC
C 87554

Marant Food Products, Mdina Road,
Zebbug, ZBG 9017, Malta
(the “Company”)

COMPANY ANNOUNCEMENT

The following is a Company Announcement 1ssued by the Company on the 26" Apnl 2021, in terms of the Prospects
MTF Rules issued by the Malta Stock Exchange.

Quote

The Company gives notice that dunng the meeting of the Board of Directors of the Company held on the 26th
Aprl 2021 (the “Board Meeting”), the Board of Directors approved the Annual Report and Audited Financial
Statements for the financial year ended 31st December 2020 and resolved to propose the same for the approval of
the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting being held on the 29th Apnl 2021.

The Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements of the Company are available for viewing on the Company’s
website on: https://www.theconventenceshop.com/investors-announcement/. Dunng the Board Meetng, the
Board further resolved to recommend to the Annual General Meeting the distnibution of a net dividend 1n the
amount of one hundred and twenty-four thousand Euro (€124,000).

The Company notes that the profit before tax for the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2020 amounted to €1.0 mullion, representing an adverse variance of €0.6 million when compared with
the Financial Sustamability Forecasts published by means of Company Announcement CVS23, given that the
projections had forecasted a profit before tax of €1.6 million. The difference is mainly attributable to a materal
adverse vavance in the Group’s turnover as a result of the COVID-1% pandemig, in particular the impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic on the outlets located in touristic areas, and higher operating costs incurred by the Group to
amongst others, protect the health and safety of customers and employees. Moreover, management has prudently
increased provisions for stock vanances.

Unquote

A

Richard Deschryjver - Company Secretary

Date: 26% Apnl 2021
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

for the year ended 31 December 2020

The Directors present thair report and the audited consolidated financia! staternents for the year ended 31

December 2020
The Directors who served during the period and up till the date of this report are as follows:

van Calleja
Kevin Deguara
Benjamin Muscat
Joseph Pace
Manuel Piscopo
Charles Scerri

Overview

The Convenience Shop (Holding) plc ("the Company” or "the Parent Company”) was incorporated on 26
July 2018 as the Parent Company and the finance arm of The Convenience Graup (the "Group"). The
Group of which the Company is the parent consists of the enlities as detailed below.

In 2018, the Company announced the offer of €5,000,000 5% unsecured bonds callable 2026-2029, issued
in terms of the Company Admission Document dated the 8 March 2019 ('the Bonds'). Bond subscriptions
closad on the 22 March 2018 with the bond being fully subscribed and admitted to the Prospects MTF on
the 28 March 2019. The funds were ulilised for the acquisition of going concern businesses, to repay
balances due to sharehotders and to finance new shop opanings.

During 2019 the Company sither acquired or made investments in the following companies:

The Convenience Shop Limited (C 87556)
The Convenience Shop Management Limited (C87711)

Daily Retail Challenges Limited (C79662)

Aynic & Co. Limited (C74750)

Seafront Express Limited (C73435)

Gbake Manufacturing Limited {C60422)

GNJ Company Limited (CB8989)

Gbake Retail Limited (C80421)

The Convenlence Shop for Puttinu Cares (C90748)

During the year undar review, the Company entered into a share transfer agreement through which it
purchased the remaining shares of Aynic & Co. Limited.
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Principal activities

The principal activitiss of the Group relate to the operation of a chain of mini market stores under The
Convenience Shop brand in Malta with a curre shop count of 37 owned shops and 34 franchised shops
as at 31 December 2020.

Review of the business trading performance

During the great part of 2020, the global economy was impacted by the effects and restrictions imposed on
activity to counter the spread of the COVID-19 pandemic. Across the world, governmenis were induced to
take measures to limit the transmission of the virus with devastating effects on consumer and business
confidence. This translated into a significant contraction in the economic activity of countries including
Malta

The Group had a roller coaster effect on its business. Initially the positive spill-over effects on groceries
spending brought about by the pandemic, together with the introduction of an online portal, registered
satisfactory resu'ts. However, in the latter part of 2020, the Group experienced a decline in revenue from
stores located in tourist areas. The Northem and Northern Harbour regions were adversely impacted with
the vast majority of the stores located in these regions seeing a reduction in customer footfall due to the
decline in tourism and sudden departure of thousands of expals. (768% less passengers in 2020).
Nonetheless, the Group still opened five stores in St Paul's Bay, Bugibba, Qawra, Gzira and Sliema, with
revenue generated from these outlets cushioning the impact from the pandemic whilst paving the Group's
way for the recovery period

Business in the non-touristic regions experienced different cycles. ln Q1 2020, The Convenience Shop
Group acquired a new store in Rabat and took over ownership and management of two franchised stores
Conversely, the Group closed off two underperforming stores in the central region.

The pandemic also induced a change in customer behaviour. The Group experienced a positive customer
spending sptll-over effect in the retail sector. Throughout the year, customers changed their behaviour with
less frequent outlet visits and an increase in the average salas transaction, though the Group did see a
gradual increase in outlet footfall as the general public adjusted to the new norm. The Group responded to
this shift in customer spending pattemns by launching an on-line shopping platform and adjusting opening
hours in line with customer requirements. In 2020, the Group also completed the category management
exercise in all owned stores, optimising space-to-sales and space-to-margin opportunities resulting in
further rationalisation and enhancement of products. Category management extended product categories
and ranges to reflect the specific needs of customens in each location. Fresh fruit and vegetables and fresh
meat sections were introduced in more than 50% of our stores.
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Despite the many challenges faced, the Convenience Shop Group acted In a timely manner by taking a
number of actions to support customers, employees and the business.

Notwithstanding, the Group registered a good financial performance with a profit before tax of €1 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020, a turnaver of €32.9 million and a gross profit of €3.5 million (16-month
period ending 31 December 2018 - €1.7 million, €39.6 milion and €6 milllon respectively). This is
considered |o ba a satisfactory performance taking into consideration the changed business landscape and
consumer behaviour brought about by the pandemic.

When comparing these resulls with the Forecast as submitted through the Company Announcement
CV522 on 11 August 2020, the adverse variance in the profit before tax of €0.53 million is mainly
attributable to lower turnover as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic as explained earlier and higher
operating costs to amongst others, ensure safety and infection prevention. Moreover, provisions for stock
pilferages were higher than envisaged in the Forecast. Management has revised the forecast for 2021
which will be published with the Annual Report.

The Group'’s numbar one priorlly remains the health and well-being of itls employees and customers, All
stores have effective health and safety measures and procedures for infection prevention in place, including
social distancing measures and personal protective equipment, as well as guidelines 1o limit the number of
customers in store. In addition, head office staff were given the opportunity to wark remotely from home
throughaut the paniat lockdown periods.

The pandemic has brought about an unprecedented and challenging year for all employees. The Board is
proud of the way employees have responded to the challenges faced by the Group and would like to take

the opportunity to thank them for thelr commitmaent.

Financial position

The Group's total assets as at 31 Decembaer 2020 amounted to €33.8 million (as at 31 December 2019 -
€25.8 million).

Although during 2020, the pandemic has put pressure on the ability to generate cash, the Group remains
highly liquid. Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2020 amounted to €1.1 million (aa at 31
Decembar 2019 - €1.8 millien) .

The Group's net borrowings (excluding the lease liability in terms of IFRS 16) amounted to €6 million (as
at 31 December 2019 - €9.6 miliion). Tota! equity of the Group including shareholders' loans amounted to
€3.4 million (as at 31 Dacember 2019 - €4.3 milfion).
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Despite the effects of the pandemic, the Group continued strengthening its retail network by opening six
new outlets and taking over ownership and management of two franchised stores. In 2020, the Group's
investing aclivities amounted to €1.2 million. Moreover, the Group i3 continuing the upgrade of existing
outlets in order to ensure that the look and feel of the shops is consistently of good qualily across the entire
network.

Financial risk managemant
The Group and the Parent Company are exposed to a variety of financial risks, including market nsk, credit

risk and liquidity risk, as disclosed in Note 28 to the financial statements.
Outlook for 2021 and events subsecuent to the financial reporting date

The Group is striving to implement a robust plan across the entire business focusing on initiatives within its
control that suppont the Group in the immediate tarm and position it well to emerge stronger when markets

racover.

The Group s investing in pecple and systems to enhance stock management across all outlets with the
aim of improving the Group's stack holding to reflect ongoing demand. Focus is also directed at
strengthening stock control and idantifying potential issues in a timely manner.

Management is working to reduce head office costs by enhancing process efficiencies and focusing on
cost containment, compleling restructuring in atores and head office te minimise discretionary spend.

In Q2 of 2021 the Group is investing in a time and attendance system and introducing new controls and
procedures to monitor cost of labour across all outlets. This system will help the Group contain operational
costs by re-aligning man hours across different outlets, according to store size and turnaver.

Looking ahead, value creation to its shareholders remains central to the Group's plans as it continues 1o
invest in the longer term where it identifies attractive opportunities for sustainable growth.
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities faor the financlal statements

The directors are required by the Maltese Gompanies Act, Cap. 386 to prepare financial statements which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Parent Company es at the end of sach
reporting periad and of the profit or loss for that period
In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for
¢ ensuring that the financial statements have been drawn up in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU,
» selecting and applying appropriale accounting policies;
¢ making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances,
s account for income and charges relating to the accounting period on accrual basis;
» value separately the components of asset and liability items; and
+ ensuring that the financiat statements are prepared on the going concem basis unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the Group and the Parent Company will continue in business as a
going concern.

The directors are also responsible for designing. implementing and maintaining internal control as
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statemenis that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and thal comply with the Maitese Companies Act, Cap. 386. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misslatement, whether dug to fraud or error. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assats of the
Group and the Parent Company end hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other irregularities.

The financial statements of The Convenience Shop {Holding) plc for the year ended 31 December 2020
are included in the Annual Report 2020, which is available on the Parent Company's website. The directors
are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Annual Report on the website in view of their
responsibility for the controls over, and the securily of, the website. Access to information published on the
Parent Company’s website is available in other countries and jurisdictiona, where legislation governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from requirernents or practice in Malta.

The directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge:

* the financial stalements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and the
Parent Company as at 31 December 2020, and of the financial performance and the cash flows for
the period then ended in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards as adopted
by the EU; and

o the annual report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and
the position of the Group and the Parent Company, together with a description of the principal risks
and unceriainties that the Group and the parent Company face.
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Dividends

The COVID-18 pandemic and the uncertainty that it has brought about necessitates that the Board of
Directors remains prudent when it comes to the declaration of dividends. Directors want to ensure that the
business activity, with the lifting of the restrictions, returns to normal levels in order to return to sustainable
profitability. At the same time, efforts will keep being directed at implementing the growth strategy and
strengthening the operating capability that the Group has embarked on with a view to create sustainable
value to all stakehoiders.

During the year, a final dividend of €700,000 was paid out of prior year profits. The Board declared an
interim net dividend of €200,000 on 27 August 2020, The Board is still proposing the payment of a final net
dividend, albeit less in view of the current circumstances of aconomic crisis of €124,000, for consideration

at the forthcoming Annual General Mesting.

Going concern

As at 31 December 2020, iotal assets exceeded total lizbilities by €2.8 million, The Directors, at the time
of approving the financial statements, have determined thal there is reasonable expectation that the Group
and the Parent Company have adequate resources 1o conlinue operating for the foreseeable future. For
this reason, the Direclors have adopted the going concern basis in preparing the financial stataments.
Reference is made to the outlcok as explained earlier on for the financial year ended 31 December 2020
and events occurring after the statement of financial position date.

As required by Listing Rule 5.62, upon due consideration of the Company's profitability and statement of
financial position, the Diractors confirm the Company's abilty to continue operating as a going concern for
the foreseeable future

Audifors

RSM Malta. Certified Public Accountants, have expressed their willngness to continue in office and a
resolution for their reappointment will be proposed at the Annual General Meeling.

Approved by the Board on 26 April 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

2N\, B

Benjamin MuscaU Charles Scerri
Chairman Non-executive Director
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Corporate Governance - Statement of Compliance
for the year ended 31 December 2020

Introduction
The Prospects MTF Rules issued by the Malta Stock Exchange require qualifying companies admitted to
Prospects MTF to observe relavant corporate governance standards, in this case the Code of Principles of

Good Corporate Governance ("the Code").

The Board of Directors (the "Board" or the "Directors”) of The Convenience Shop (Holding) ple (the
"Company") acknowledges that although the Code does not diclate or prescribe mandatary rules,
compliance with the principles of good corporate governance recommended in the Code is in the best
interests of the Company, its shareholders and other stakeholders.

The Company's decision-making structure is designed to meet the Company requirements and to ascertain
that decision making is subject to the checks and balances where this is appropriate.

General
Good corporate governance is the responsibility of the Board as a whole, and has been, and remains a

priority for the Company. In deciding on the mast appropriate manner in which to implement the Code, the
Board took cognisance of the Company’s size, nature and operations, and is of the opinion that the adoption
of certain mechanisms and structures is propartionate to the scale of operalions which the Company has

The Board considers that, to the extent ctherwise disclosed herein, the Company has generally been in
compliance with the Code throughout the year under review.

This Statement sets out the stnictures and processes in place within the Company and how lhese
effectively achieva the goals set out in the Code for the year under review. For this purposs, this Statement
makes reference to the pertinent principles of the Code and then sets out the manner in which the Board
considers that these have been adhered to, and where it has not

For the avoidance of doubt, reference in this Statement to compliance with the principles of the Code means
compliance with the Code's main principles.

The Directors befieve that for the financial year under review, the Company has gensrally complied with
the requirements for each of the Code’s main principles. Further information in this respect is provided

hereunder.
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Principle One: The Company's Board of Directors

The Directors report that for the financial year under reviaw, the Directors have provided the necessary
leadership in the overall direction of the Company and have performed their responsibilities for the efficlent
and smooth running of the Company with honesty, competence and integrity. The Board is composed of
members who are fit and proper to direct the business of the Company with honesty, compaetence and
integrity. All the members of the Board are fully aware of, and conversant with, the slatutory and regulatory
requirements connected to the business of the Company. The Board is accountable for its performance
and that of its delegates to shareholders and other relevant stakeholders.

The Board has throughout the year under review adopted prudent and effective systems which ensure an
open dialogue between tha Board and senior management.

The Company has a structure that enaures a mix of executive and non-exacutive directors and that enables
the Board to have diract information about the Company's performance and business aclivities

Principie Two: The Company's Chalrman and Chief Executive
The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive are held by separate individuals and the division of
responsibilities are clearly established and agreed by the Board.

The Chalrman exercises independent judgement and is responsible to lsad the Board and set its agenda
whilst also ensuring that the directors receive precise, timely and objective information so that they can
take sound dacisions and effectively monitor the perormance of the Company. The Chalrman is also
responsible for ensuring effective communication with shareholders and ensuring active engagement by
all members of the Board for discussion of complex or contentious issues.

The Chief Exacutive reporis regularly to the Board on the business and affairs of the Company and the
Group and the commercial, acenomic and other challenges facing it. He is also responsible to ensure that
all submissions made to the Board are timely, give a true and correct picture of the issue or issues under
consideration, and are of high professional standards ag may ba reguired by the subject malter concemned

Each subsidiary within the Group has ils own management structura and accounting systems and internal
controls, and is governed by its own Board, whose members, are appoinied by the Company This provides
sufficient delegation of powers o achieve effective managemant The organisalional structure ensures that
decision making powers are spread wide enough to allow proper control and reporting systems to be in
piace and maintained in such a way that no one individual or small group of individuals actually has
unfettered powers of dacision.

10
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Principle Three: Composition of the Board

The Board is composed of 6 members, with 3 executive and 3 non-executive Directors, with each member
cffering core skills and experience that are relevant for the successful operation of the Company. The non-
exacutive Directors are Independent from the Group. The Board Is responsible for the overall fong-term
strategy and general policies of the Company, of monitoring the Company’s systems of control and financial
reporting and communicating effectively with the market as and when necessary.

The Board of Directors consists of the following:
e Benjamin Muscat — Chairman / Non-executive Director
s Charles Scersi — Non-executive Director
s Kevin Deguara — Non-executive Diractor
» Joseph Pace - Director
» lvan Calleja - Director
= Manuel Piscopo - Director

In accordance with the provisions of the Company's Aricles of Association, the appointment of Directors
to the Board is exclusivaly reserved to the Company's shareholders, except in so far as appointment is
made by the Board to fill a casual vacancy, which appointment would be valid until the conclusion of the
next Annual General Meeting of the Company following such an appointment. in tarms of the Articles of
Association, a Director shall hold office without retirement until death or until they retire or are removed by
the Company in accordance with Article 140G of the Companies Act, Cap. 386.

Mr. Benjamin Muscat and Mr.Charles Scerri are consldered by the Board to be independent non- executive
members of the Board.

None of the independsnt non-executive Direclors:
a) is or has been employed in any capacity with the Company and/or the Group;
b) has or had a significant business relationship with the Company and/or the Group;
¢) has received significant additional remuneration from the Company and/or the Group;
d) has close family ties with any of the Company's execulive Directors or senior employees;
@) has served on the Board for more than twelve consecutive years; or
f) is or has been within the [ast three years an engagement partner or a member of the audit team of
the present or former external auditor of the Company and/or the Group.

Each non-executive Director has declared in wriling to the Board that he undertakes:
a) tomaintain in all circumstances his independence of analysis, decision and action;
b) not to seek or accept any unreasonable advantages that could be considered as compromising
his/er independence; and
c) to clearly express his/her opposition in the event that he finds that a declsion of the Board may
harm the Company.
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Principle Four: The Responsibilities of the Board

The Board acknowledges ils statutory mandate 1o conduct the administration and management of the
Company. In fulfilling this mandate and discharging its duty of stewardship of the Company, the Board
assumes responsibilily for the Company's strategy and decisions with respect to the issue, servicing and
redemption of its bond in issue, and for menitoring that its operations are in conformity with its commitments
towards bondholders, shareholders, and all relevant laws and regulations. The Board is also responsible
for ensuring that the Company establishes and operates effective internal control and management
information systems and that it communicates effectively with the market,

Directors are entitled to seek independent professional advice at any time on any aspect of their duties and
responsibilities, at the Company’s expense.

The Board has also established an Audit Committee in terms of rule 4.01.01(d) of the Prospects MTF Rules

as follows:

The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee’s primary objective is to assist the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities: in dealing with
issues of risk, control and governance; and raview the financial reporting processes, financial policies and
internal control structure. During the financial year under raview, the Audit Committee met twelve times.

Although the Audit Committes is set up at the level of the Company its main tasks are also relatad to the
activities of the Group.

The Board has set formal terms of establishment and the terms of reference of the Audit Committee that
establish its compasition, role and function, the parameters of its remit as well as the basis for the processes
that it is required to comply with. The Audit Committee is a sub-commitiee of the Board and is directly
rasponsible and accountable to the Board.

Furthermore, the Audit Committee has the role and function of scrutinising and evaluating any proposed
transaction to be entered into by the Company and a related party, to ensure that the execution of any such
transaction is at arm’s length and on a commercial basis and ultimately in the best interests of the Company.

The Audit Commiltee is composed of 3 membars:
e Charlas Scerri = Chairman
» Benjamin Muscat - Member
+ |van Calleja — Member — (raplaced by Kevin Deguara on 23 April 2020)
¢ Kevin Daguara — Member (appointad {o replace ivan Calleja on 23 April 2020)

Mr. Charles Scerri and Mr.Benjamin Muscat are non-executive Directors and qualified accountants, who
the Board considers as independent and competent in accounting.

12
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internal Control and Risk Management

The Board is ultimately responsible for the Company’s system of internal controls and for reviewing its
effactiveness. The Diractors are aware that internal control systems are designed to manage, rather than
eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable, and not
absolute, assurance against normal business risks.

During the financial year under review the Company operated a system of internal controls which provided
reasonable assurance of effective and efficient operations covering ail controls, including financial and
operational conlrols and compliance with laws and regulations. Processes are in place for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks facing the Company

Other key features of the system of internal control adopted by the Company in respect of its own internal
contral as well as the controf of its subsidiaries and affiliates are as follows:

Risk identification, control and reporting

The Board, with the assistance of the management team, is respansible for the identification and evaluation
of key risks applicable to the areas of business in which the Company and its subsidiaries are involved.
These risks are assessed on a confinual basis with a view to conlrel and mitigate where deemed necessary.
Major risks applicable to their areas of business are reported upon on a monthly basis.

Informaticn and communication

Periodic strategic reviews which include consideration of long-term financial projections and the evaluation
of business allernalives are regularly convened by the Board. An annual budget is prepared and
performance against this pfan is actively monitored and reportad to the Board.

Reporting

The Group has implemented control procedures designed to ensure compiete and accurate accounting for
financial transactions and to limit the polential exposure to loss of assets or fraud. Measures taken include
physical controls, segregation of duties and reviews by management. On a monthly basis the Board
receives a comprehensive analysis of financial and business perfarmance, including reports comparing
aclual performance with budgets as well as analysis of any variances.

In conclusion, the Board considers that the Company has generally been in compliance with the Principles
throughout the year under review as befits a company of this size and nature, Non-compliance with the
principles and the reasons thereof have been identified below.

13
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Principle Five: Board Meetings
The Directors meet regularly to dispatch the businass of the Board. The Directors are notified of forthcoming

meetings by the Company Secretary with the issue of an agenda and supporting Board papers, which are
circulated in advance of the meeting. Minutes are prepared during Board meetings recording faithfully
altendance, and resolutions faken at the meeting. The Chairman ensures that all relevant igsues on the
agenda are supported by all availabie information, whilst encouraging the presentation of views pertinent
to the subject matter and giving all Directors every opportunity to contribute to relevant issues on the
agenda. The agenda on the Board seeks to achieve a balance between long-term strategic and short-term

performance issues.

The Board meets as often as frequently required in line with the nature and demands of the business of
the Company. Directors attend meetings on a frequent and regular basis and dedicate the necessary time
and altention to their dulies as Directors of the Company. The Board met six times during the financial year

under review.

The foltowing Directars attended Board meetings as follows:

Name Designation Number of

Meetings
Benjamin Muscast Chairman/Nan-executive Director 6 out of 6
Charles Scerri Non-executive Director Boutof &
Kevin Deguara Non-executive Director Goutof6
Joseph Pace Director Goutof 8
ivan Calleja Director Soutof §
Manue! Piscopo Director Goutof6

Principle Six: information and Professional Development

As part of succession planning and employee retention, the Board and Chief Executive ensure that the
Company implements appropriate schemes o racruit, relain and motivale employees and senior
management and keep a high morale amongst employees.

The Chief Execulive, although rasponsible for the recruitment and selection of senior management,
consults with the Board on the appointment of, and on a succession plan for, senior management.

Tralning (both internal and external} of management and employees remains a priority. This is coordinated
through the Company's Human Resources Dapartment

14
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The Board has access to the advice and services of the company secretary wha is responsible for ensuring
that hoard procedures are complied with, as well as for ensuring that sound information flows batween the
Board and the Audit Committes.

Principle Seven: Evaluation of the Board's Performance

Under the present circumstances, the Board still does not consider it necessary to appoint 8 committee to
carry out a performance evaluation of its role, as the Board’s performance s always under the scruliny of
the shareholders of the Company.

Principla Elght: Remuneration and Nomination Committees

The Board of Diractors considers that the size and cperation of the Company does not warrant the setting
up of a nomination and remuneration commiltes. The Company will not be incorporating a nomination
committee. Appointments 10 the Board of Directors are determined by the shareholders of the Company in
accordance with the company's Memorandum and Articles of Association. The Company considers that
the members of the Board possess the level of skill, knowledge and experience axpected in terms of the
Code.

Principles Nine and Ten: Relations with Shareholders and with the Market and with Institutional
Shareholders

Pursuant to the Company's statutory obligations in terms of the Companies Act (Cap. 386 of the Laws of
Malta), the Annual Report and Financial Statements, the election of Directors and approval of Directors’
fees, the appointment of the auditors and the autherisation of the Directors to set the auditors’ fees, and
other special business, are proposed and approved at the Company's Annual General Maeeting.

The Board is responsible for making relavant public announcements and for the Company's compliance
with its continuing obligations in terms of the rules of Prospects MTF. With respect to the Company's
bondholders and the market in general, during the financial year under review, there were eighteen
Company announcements issued to the market.

Principle Eleven: Confiicts of Interest
The Directors are strongly aware of their responsibility to act at all times in the interest of the Company and
its shareholders as a whole and of their obligation to avoid conflicts of interest.

All of the Directors of the Company, except for Benjamin Muscat and Charles Sceri, have a direct beneficial
interest in the share capital of the Company, and as such are susceptible to confiicts arising betwaen the
potentially diverging interests of the shareholders and the Company. During the financial year under review,
no private interests or duties unrelated to the Company were disclosed by the Directors which were or
could have been likely to place any of them in conflict with any interests in, or duties towards the Company

15
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If a Director has a continuing material interest that conflicts with the interests of the Company, he is obliged
to take effective steps to eliminate the grounds for conflict. In the event that such steps do not eliminate the
grounds for conflict then the Director should consider resigning.

Moreover, the Audit Committee has the task to ensure that any potential conflicts of interest are resolved
in the best interests of the Company. Furthermore, in accordance with the provisions of article 145 of the
Companies Act (Cap. 386 of the Laws of Malta), every Directar who is in any way, whether directly or
indirectly, interested in a contract or proposed contract with the Company is under the duly to fully declare
his interest in the relevant tranaaction to the Board at the first possible opportunity and he will not be entitied
to vole on matters relating to the proposed transaction and only parties who do not have any canflict in
considering the matier will participate in the consideration of the proposed transaction (unless the Board
finds no objection to the presence of such Director with conflict of interest)

Principle Twelve: Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company seeks to adhere to sound Principles of Corporale Social Responsibility in its management
practices and Is commitied to enhanca the quality of life of all stakeholders and of the employees of the
Company and the Group.

The Board is mindful of the environment and its responsibility within the community in which it operates.

Since its origins, tha Group chooses to recognise ils social and environmental responsibilities by making
Corporate Social Responsibility an important tool to mediale and achieve an optimum balance in
responding to the different needs of the various stakeholders.

This year the Group has completed progress against its 2020 goals cavering environmental stewardship,
responsible trade, looking afler its workforce and its community donation programrme. The Group continued
supporting Caritas and the Malta Community Chest Fund Foundation. The Group has a retail outlet in
Qormi with all profits being passed on to Puttinu Cares,

In carrying on its business the Group is fully aware and at the forefront to preserving the environment and
continuously raview its policies aimed at respecting the environment and encouraging social responsibility
and accountability.

Non-Compliance with the Code
As at the date heraof, the Board considars the Company to be in compliance with the Code except for the

following:

16



THE CONVENIENCE SHOP (HOLDING) PLC
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Principle Seven: Evaluation of tha Board’s Performance

The Board has not appointed a committee for the purpose of undertaking an evaluation of the Board's
performance in accordance with the requirements of Code Provision 7.4 The Board bellaves that the size
of the company and the Board itself does not warmrant the establishment of a committee specifically for the
purpose of carrying out a performance evaluation of its role. Whilst the requirement under Code Provision
7.1 might be useful in the context of larger companies having a more complex set-up and a larger Board,
the size of the company's Board is such that it should enable it {o evaluate its own performance without the
reguirement of setting up an ad-hoc committee for this purpose. Tha Board shall retain this matter under
reviaw over the coming year,

Principfe Eight: Committees

The Board considers that the size and operation of the Company does not warrant the selting up of
nomination and remuneration committes in line with Code Provision 8A_ The Board relies on the constant
scrutiny of the Board itself, the company's shareholders, the market and the rules by which the company
is regulated as a listed entity. in addition, the Board took into consideration the fact that the remuneration
of the Board is not performance related. The Board intends to keep under review the utility and possible
benefits of having a Remuneration Commiltee in due course.

Appointments to the Board of Directors are determined by the shareholders of the Company in accordance

with the company's Memorandum and Articles of Association. The Company considers that the members
of the Board possess the level of skill, knowledge and experience expscted in terms of the Code.

Approved by the Board on 26 April 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

—

Benjamin Muscat ) Charles Scerri
Chairman Non-execulive Director
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RSM Malta

Independent AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Shareholders of The Conveniance Shop (Holding) p.l.c.
Report on the audit of the financlal statements

Opinlon

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The Convenience Shop {Holding) p.l.c.
(*the Company”) and the consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group™), set out on pages 24 - 62, which comprise the statements of financial position
as at 31 December 2020, and the statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in
equity and statements of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policles.

In our opinion, the financial statements glve a true and falr view of the financial position cf the
Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of their financial performance and their
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with international Financial Reporting Standards
{IFRS) as adopted by the Eurapean Unian (EU), and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Companies Act (Cap. 386).

Our oplnion Is consistent with our additional report to the Audit Committee.

Basis for Oplinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). OQur
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilittes for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We ara independent of the Company and of
the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements of both the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International
Independence Standards) (IESBA Code) and the Accountancy Profession (Code of Ethics for
Warrant Holders) Directive issued in terms of the Accountancy Profession Act (Cap. 281) in Malta
that are relevant te our audit of the financial stataments, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code and the Code of Ethics for Warrant Holders in
Malla. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide

a basis tor our opinion.

The non-audit services that we have provided to the Group and its subsidiaries during the year snded
31 December 2020 are disclosed in Note 6 to the financial statements.

TITAX | CONSULTING i
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT - continued

Repaort on the audit of the financial statements - continued

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressad in the context
of our audit of the financfal statements as a whole and in farming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Business combinations

As disclosed in Notes 13, during the year ended 31 Decembar 2020, the Group acquired the business
operations of MKJ Company Limited which was operaling two shops under “The Convenience Shop'
brand. The Group also acquired the remaining 50% shareholding in Aynic & Co Limited.

The Group accounted for the acquisitions in accordance with IFRS 3 Business Combinations. The
purchase consideration was based on the book value of the assets and liabilities of the acquired
business. The directors have assessed and agreed that this is representative of the fair value.

In responding to the significant judgement involved, our audit procedures included reviewing the
relevant acquisition agreements to obtain an understanding of the transaction and to confirm the
consideration. We also considered the adsquacy of the related disclosures in the notes to the
financia! statements.

Impairment assessment of intanglble assets with indefinite useful lives

As disclosed in Note 13, the Group's goodwill and suppliers’ agreements balance and Intellectual
properly are €5.6 million, €3.1 million and €4 million respectively. The first two intangible assets arose
from the PPA exercise performed in the prior year whilst the intellectual property arase from the
acquisition of ‘The Convenience Shop' trademark which was purchased from Jin Limited during the
year under review.

In line with IAS 36, "Impairment of assets", the directors are required to assess whether the intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are potentially impaired.

The impairment assessment is subject to significant directors' judgement and estimation in the
following areas;

{1) the salection of an appropriate impairment model to be used, in this case, the discounted cash
flows model,

(2) the assessment and datermination of the expsected cash flows

(3) setting appropriate growth rates; and

{4) selection of the appropriate discount rate.

tn light of the significant directors’ judgerent we consider this to be a key audit matter for our audit.

In responding lo the significant judgement involved, our audit procedures included, assessing the
appropriatenass of the Impairment model, assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions
employed in the valuation mede!, including the discount rate adopted with the help of cur Internal
valuation specialist, and we challenged and evaluated key assumptions related to revenue projection.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT - continued
Report on the audit of the financlal statements - continued
Key Audit Matters - continued

Inventory and sale of goods

The business s characterized by fast movement of consumer goods and operates 37 shops around
Malta. The inventory of the Group primarily consists of food, goods and other ancillary products that
are sold through its retail outlets in the fast-moving consumer goods industry. The revenue and
inventory processes are key drivers to the development of the business. We identified the accuracy
and existence of the inventory and revenue as an area of higher risk of material misstatement and
consequently, a key audit matter.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s inventories amounted to €2.5 million, while revenue amounted
to €32.9 million as disclosed in Notes 18 and 5 to the financial statements. in responding to the risk
Identified, we obtained an understanding of the revenue cycle, inventory management processes and
invantory count procedures. We assessed the design and implementation of the key controls over
thase processes. We were not eble to take a control rellant audit approach on certain assertions dus
to weaknesses noted In the IT environment and inventory process. Where we noted deficiencies, we
extended the scope of our substantive procedures.

Our audit progedures algo included, but were not restricted to, observing inventory count procedures
at selocted shops and performing test counts. We traced our test counts to the inventory system to
determine if the system reflects actual count results. Analytical procedure on gross margin was
performed by linking the margin agains! supplier agreements and selling prices, on a sample basis.

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the general
information and the directors' raport. Our apinion on the financial statements does not cover the other

information, including the directors’ report.

in connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materlally
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be matenially misstated. If, based on tha wark we have performed on the other information
that we have obtained prior to the date of this auditors’ report, we conclude that there is a material
misstatemant of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report

in this regard.

Under Article 179(3) of the Companias Act (Cap. 386), we are required to consider whether the
information given in the directors’ report is compliant with the disclosure requiraments of Article 177
of the same Act.

Based on the work we have parformed, in our opinion:
s the directors' report has been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act (Cap. 388);

+ the information given in the directors’ report for the financial year on which the financial
statements had been prepared is consistent with those in the financial statements; and

¢ in light of our knowledge and understanding of the Company and the Group, and their
environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material

misstatements in the directors’ report.



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT - continued

Report on the audit of the tinancial statements - continued

Responsibilities of the Directors and those charged with governance for the Financial
Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU and the requirements of the Companies Act (Cap,
386), and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company and
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matlers related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors elther intend to liquidate
the Company and/or the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for oversesing the financial reporting process.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financlal Staternents

Our objsctives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financlal statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when i
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or In
the aggregate, they could reascnably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those sisks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misreprasentations, or the ovarride
of internal control.

» Obtain an undersianding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the clrcumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company and the Group's internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of acoounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors,

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a materlal uncertainty exists related to
avents or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company and the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Iif we concluds that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our oplnion. Qur concluslons are based on the audit
evidence obiained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or ¢onditions
may cause the Company and/or the Group to cease 1o continue as a going concerm.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT - continued

Report on the audit of the financlal statements - continued
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements - continued

« Obtain sufficlent appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activitles within the Group lo express an opinion on the consolidated financial
staternents. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit.
We ramain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencles in
internaf control that wa Identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relavant
ethical raquirements regarding independsnce, and communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought ta bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with govemance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current year and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors' report unless law or
regulation precludes public disciosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to oulweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Report on the Statement of Compliance with the Principles of Good Corporate Governance

The Prospects MTF Rules issued by the Malta Listing Authority requires the directors to prepare and
include in their Aeport a Statement of Compliance providing explanation of the extent to which they
have adopted the Code of Principles of Good Governance and the effective measures that they have
taken to ensure compliance throughout the year with thase principles.

The Prospects MTF Rules also require the auditors to report on the Statement of Compliance
prepared by the directors.

We read the Statemsnt of Compliance and consider the implications for our report it we become
aware of any apparent misstalements or materlal inconsistencies with the financial statements
included In the Report. Qur responsibilities do not extend to consideting whather this statement is
consistent with any other information included in the Report.

We are not required to, and we do not, consider whether the Board's statements on intemal control
included in the Statement of Compliance cover all risks and controls, or form an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's corporate governance procedures or its risk and control precedures.

In our opinion, the Statament of Compliance with the Principles of Good Corporate Governancs has
been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Prospacts MTF Rules issued by

the Malta Listing Authority.



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT - continued

Report on the audit of the financial statements - continued

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements - continued
Other matters on which we have to report by exception

We also have responsibillties:

e Under the Companlies Act, Cap. 386 to report 1o you if, in our opinion:

e Adequate accounting records have been kept, or that relums adequate for our audit have

been raceivad from branches not visited by us.
The financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.
s  We have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
¢ Cerlain disclosures of direclors’ remuneration specified by law are not made in the
financial statements, giving the required particulars in our report.

¢ Under the Prospects MTF Rules to reviaw the statement made by the directors that the business
is a going concarn together with supporting assumptions or quatifications, as necessary.

We have nothing to report ta you in respect of these responsibilities.

Appointment
We were tirst appointed by the directors as auditors of the Company on 29 October 2019.

This copy of the audit report has bean signed by

o

Conrad Borg (Principal)
for and on behalf of

RSM Malta
Certitied Public Accountants

26 April 2021
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Administrative expenses
Operating profit

Other income

Loss on acquisition of subsidiaries
Share of the loss of associate
Finance cost

Finance income

Profit before tax

Tax

Profit for the financial year/period

Total comprehensive income for
the year/period

Total comprehensive income for
the year/period is attributabfe to:

Non-controlling interest
Owners of the Company

Earnings per shara

Note

5

13
16

10

11

Group Company
01.01.2020 26.07.2018 01.01.2020 26.07.2018
to to to to
31.12.2020 31.12.2018 31.12.2020 31.12.2019
€ € € €
32,916,195 38,566,047 461,538 1,076,923
{29,455,468) (33,529,781) - -
3,460,727 6,036,266 461,538 1,076,923
(2,288,443)  (3,638,208) (61,579) (46,198)
1,175,284 2,398,058 399,959 1,030,725
629,880 327,037 - -
- (346,279) . -
. (5.600) - -
{762,193) (677,466) (250,513)  (188,233)
821 813 318,500 244,329
1,043,772 1,696,563 467,946 1,086,821
{508,205) (969,095) (185,333)  (396,557)
537,567 727,468 282 613 690,264
537,567 727,458 282,613 690,264
2,110 (46,458) . .
535,457 773,926 282,613 690,264
10.76 14.55 5.66 13.81
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
€ € € €
ASSETS Note
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 12 3,767,681 3,218,579 - -
ImMangible assets 13 13,491,239 8,973,282 4,000,000 -
Right-of-use asset 14 9,473,631 7,185,129 - -
Investment in subsidiaries 15 - - 287,797 219,809
Invesiment in associates 16 - . 1,688 3,376
Loans receivable 17 . - 4,460,317 4,267,318
Deferred tax asset 1" _ - 19,107 . - -
26,732,45% 19,376,097 8.749,802 4,490,503
Current asseis
{nventories 18 2,470,200 1,847,120 - -
Trade and other receivables 19 3,363,372 2,804,911 3,354,451 794 843
Cash and cash equivalents 25 1,085,128 1,819,424 105,865 507,029
6,898,788 6,471,455 3,480,318 1,301,872
TOTAL ASSETS 33,631,239 25647,552 _12,210,118 5,792,376
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capita! and reserves
Share capital 20 70,000 50,000 70,000 50,000
Share premium 2,187,924 - 2,187,924 -
Retained earnings 385,342 773,926 72,877 690,264
2,623,266 823,926 2,330,801 740,264
Non-controlling interest {44,241) (123,492) - -
TOTAL EQUITY 579,02 700,434 2,330,801 740,264
Non-current liabilities
Interast — bearing loans and 2 5,594,699 5333,333 4,744,719 4,744,206
borrowings
Lease liability 23 9,446,443 7,013,720 - -
Deferred tax liability 1" 30,139 - - -
16,071,281 12,347,053 4,744,719 4,744 208
Current Jiabilitles
Current tax payable 1 1,433,154 979,993 42,179 19,634
Interest — bearing loans and 21 452,490 4,261,568 250,000 250,000
borrowings
Lease liabitity 23 598,083 442 721 - -
Trade and other payables 24 13,497,208 7115783 4,842 419 38,271
15,980,933 12,800,085 5,134,598 307,905
TOTAL LIABILITIES 31,082,214 25.147,118 9,879,317 5,052,111
TOTAL EQUITY AND
LIABILITIES 33,631,239 25,847,552 12,210,118 5,792,375

and were s A its behalf by:

The financial statemenis on pages 24 lo 62 have been authorised for issue by the Board of DirectoE on 26 April 2021

-

Charlas Scerrl
Non-executive Director
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THE CONVENIENCE SHOP (HOLDING) PLC
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Group Company
01.01.2020 26.07.2018 01.01.2020 26.07.18
to to to to
31.12.2020 31.12.2018 31.12.2020 311219
Note € €
Cash flows from operating
activities
Receipts from customers 31,249,361 34,914,016 - -
Payments to suppfiers and {28,268,774) 766,364
employees (28,347,533} (1,179,693)
Other revenue 852,980 327,037 {1,964,803) 1,076,923
Income tax paid (3,798} - (1,250) -
Net cash flows from/(used in)
operating activities 3,629,749 6,893,520 (1,199,788) {102,770)
Cash flows from Investing
activities
Acquisition of investments in - (346,279) (66,300) (219,809
subsidiaries
Acquisition of investments in > {5.600) - (3,376)
associates
Acquisition of property, plant and {(901,517) (4,131,988) . -
equipment
Acquisition of intangible assels (280,488) {387,950) . -
Payments to acquire business - (B8,743,926) - -
Proceeds from disposal of PPE - 88,473 - -
Net cash flows used ininvesting {1,182,005) (13,537.270) (66,300)  {223,185)
activities
Cash flows from financing
activities:
Proceeds from issuance of share 2,207,924 50,000 2,207,924 50,000
capital
{Payments}/advances from (3,586,443) 3,886,443 - -
ultimate beneficial owner
Proceeds from interest-bearing 338,217 714,252 - -
Interest on borrowings (36,245) (25,924) - .
Interest on bond {250,000) - (250,000)
Proceeds from bond issuance - 4,805,973 4,805,973
Loan issued to subsidiary - - (192,999) (4,022,989)
Payment of lease liability (975,495) (967.570) -
Dividends paid (900,000) - {500,000) -
Nat cash flows (used in)from {3,202,042) 8,463,174 864,925 832,984
financing actlvities
Net cash (decrease)fincrease in (754,298) 1,819,424 (401,184) 507,029
cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1,819,424 - 507,029 .
beginning of year/period
Cash and cash equivalents at 25 1,085,128 1,819,424 105,865 507,029
end of year/period
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THE CONVENIENCE SHOP {HOLDING) PLC
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Convenlence Shop (Holding) pic ("“the Company”) is a limited liability company incomporated in
Malta with registration number of C 87554 and registered address at Marant Food Products, Mdina
Road, Zebbug ZBG 8017, Maita.

The principal activity of the Company is to acl as a holding company. The Company, together with
its subsidiaries ("the Group") is engaged to operate in the fast-moving consumar goods industry and
is engaged in the retailing of food, goods and other ancillary products through its shops located
across Malla.

The ownership of the Company's share capilal and voting rights Is such that no particular individual
or identifiable group of individuals may be deemed to exercise uitimate control over the Company.

The Company and the Group were incorporated on 26 July 2018 Accordingly, the comparative
figures cover the period from the date of incorporation to 31 December 2019,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Baslis of measurement and statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Inlemationa! Financial
Reporting Standards {IFRS) as adopted by the European Union {EU) and the requirements aof the
Companies Act (Cap. 386) enacted in Malta.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently throughout the period.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial stalements are presented in Euro (€) which is the Company’s and the Group's
functiona! and presentation currency.

New or revised standards, interpretations and amendments adopted

The Company adopted several new or revised standards, interpretations and amendments issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (JASB) and the IFRS Interpretations Committee
and endorsed by the EU. The adoption of these new or revised standards, interpretations and
amendments did not have a material impact on these financlal statements.

New or revised standards, interpretations and amendments Issued but not yet effective

Several new or revised standards, interpretations and amendments were in issue and endorsed by
the EU but are not yet effective for the current financial period. The Company has not early adopted
the new or amended standards in preparing these financial statements. The directors anticipate that
the adoption of the new standards, interpretations or amendments thereto, will not have a material
impact on the financial statements upon initial application.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continuad

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statemants incorporate the assets and liabilities of all the subsidiaries of
The Convenience Shop (Holding) plc and the results of all the subsidiarias for the year then ended.

Subsidiaries are all those entities over which the Group has conlrol. The Group controls an entity
when it s exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its invalvernent with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between entilies in the
Group are eliminated. Unrealised losses are aiso eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of the impairment of the asset transferred.

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting. A
change in ownership interest, without the loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction
whare the difference batween the consideration transferred and the book value of the share of the
non-controlling interest acquired is recognised direclly in equity attributable to the parent.

The results and equity of non-controiling interest of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
statemant of comprehensive income, statement of financial position and slatement of changes in
equity of the Group. Losses incurred by the Group are attributed to the non-controliing interest in
full, even if that results in a deficit balance.

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets including goodwill,
liabilities and non-controlling Intarest in the subsidiary together with any cumulative translation
differences recognised in equity. The Group recognises the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any investment retained together with any gain or loss in profit or loss.

Revenue

Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the customer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible retum
of goods can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing management involvement with the goods
and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Sale of goods

Revenua from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when the customer obtains control
of the goods, which Is generally at point of sale.

Rendering of services

Revenue from a confract to provide services is recognised at a point in time on completion of the
service,

Interest incoma
interest income is accrued on a timely basis, by refarence to the principal oulstanding and at the

effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the assets net carrying amount.




THE CONVENIENCE SHOP (HOLDING) PLC
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Tax
The tax chargef(credit) in profit or loss normally comprises current and deferred tax.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year/period, using tax rates
enacted at the end of the reporting date.

Deferred tax is provided using the liabliity method for all temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying values far financial reporting purposes. The
amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacled at the end of the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits wil
be available against which the assets can be ulilised and/or sufficient laxable temporary differences
are available. Deferred tax assels are reduced to the extent that is no longer probable that the related
tax benefit will be realised The tax charge/(credit} in the profit or loss for the year/period normally
comprises current and deferred tax.

Propaerty, plant and equipment

An item of property, plant and equipment are intially measured at cost. Cost includes the purchase
prices and other expenditures directly attributable to bringing the assets to the location and condition
for its intended use. Subsequent expenditure relating lo the assets is added to the canrying values
of the assets when it is probable that future economkic benefits associated with the asset, in excess
of the originally assessed standards of performance, will flow back to the Company and the Group.
All other subsequent expenditure is recognised in profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write off the cost of each asset to its residual
value over its estmated useful life as follows:

%
Improvements to premiges 10
Piant and machinery 10
Office equipment 10-25
Motor Vehicles 20

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each reporling date. The effects of any revisions are recognised in profit or loss whean
the changes arise.

On disposal of an item of properly, plant and equipment, the cost and related accumulated
depreclation and impairment losses, if any, are derecognised and the difference between the

disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is recognised In profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Intangible assets

Infangible assets acquired as part of & business combination, ather than goodwill, are initially
measured at fair value at the date of acquisition, Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
measured at cost. Indefinite life intangible assels are not amortised and are subsequently measured
at cost less any impairment. Finite life intangible assets are subsaguently measured at cost less
amortisation and any impairment. The gains or Josses recognised in profit or logs ariging from the
derecognition of intangibie assels are measured as the difference between net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the intangible asset. The method and useful lives of finite life intangible
assets are revigwed annually. Changes in the expected pattern of consumption or useful life are
accounted for prospectively by changing the amortisation method or period.

Goodwill and suppliars' agreemenis

Goodwill and suppliers' agreements arise on the acquisition of a business. These inlangible assets
are not amortised. Instead, these are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment iosses. Impairment losses are taken to profit or loss and are not subsequently reversed.

Key money

The Group's other intangible asset pertains to key monsy. This rapresents expenditure associated
with acquiring existing operating lease agreements for shops where there is an active market, or the
shop is ready for its intended use.

The amortisation of key money is calculated on the straight-line method to write off the cost of each
assel 1o its residual value over its estimated useful life of 2-14 years

Intellectual Property

The intellectual property of the Company pertains to a trademark. This intangible asset is not
amortised but is tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that it might be impaired. The asset Is camied at cost less impairment losses.

Investment in subsidlaries

Subsidiaries are all those entities over which the Company has control, i.e., when the Company is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power fo direct the activities of the entity.

Investment in subsidiarias are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the consideration
given, including acquisition costs and are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to recelve payment is
established.

Investment in associates

Associates are entities over which the Company has significant influence. Significant influence s the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investes but is not control
or joint control over those policies.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
investment in associates - continued

Investments in assaciates are initially recognised at cost, including transaction costa. Subsequently,
investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method. that is, the carrying amount is
increased or decreased to recognise the Company's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate, adjusted where necessary (o ensure consistency with the
accounting policies of the Company.

When the Company's share of Insses in an associate equals or axcesds its interest in the associate,
inctuding any other unsecured receivables, the Company does not recognise further losses, unless
it has obligations or made payments on behalf of the asscciate.

The Company determines whether thers is objective evidence that the invesiment in associate
undertaking is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Company calculates the amount of impairment
as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate undertaking and its carrying
value. The Company recognises the loss within the statement of comprehensive income.

Gains and losses arising from partial disposals or dilutions in investments in associates are
recognised in prolit or loss.

Investments in associates are derecognised when the Company loses significant influence. Any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured at its fair value. The difference bstween the carrying
amount of the retained investment at the date when significant influence is lost and its fair value is
recagnised in profit or loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company and the Group's non-financial assets are assessed for
impairment whenever evenis or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may
not be recoverable,

For the purpose of impairment assessment, the recoverab'e amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value
less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis, or on a Company
basis, as a cash-generating unit (CGU), when the individual asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets in the Group to which the asset belongs. Ta
determine the value-In-use, management estimates expected future cash flows from each CGU and
determines a suitable discaunt rate in order to calcutate the present value of those cash flows.

If the recoverable amount of the asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. The difference between
the carnrying amount and recoverabls amount is recognised as an impairment loss in profit or loss.

A reversal of impairment loss for an asset is recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, if no impairment loss had baen recognised.

Inventories

Inventories are assets held for sale in the ordinary course of businass, in the procass of production
for such sale or in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed in the production process or In
the rendering of services. Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value (NRV).
Cost is calculated using the firat in first out {FIFO) method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one enlity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when the Company and the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial
instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or when the financial asset and all substantial risks and rewards are transferred.
Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expired.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified at initial recognition in accordance with how they are subsequently
measuraed, as follows:

« financial assets at amartised cost,
« financial assets at fair valus through other comprehensiva income,; and
s financial assels at fair value through profit or loss.

The Company and the Group's financial assets are mainly financial assets at amortised cost.

Financial assels at amortised cost

Financial assets at amortised costs are financial assets that are held within the business modet
whose objective ia to collect contractual cash flows ("hold to collect’) and the contractual terms give
rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest.

On initial recognition, financial assets at amortised cost are recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Discounting is omitied
where the effect of discounting is immaterial. Trade receivables without a significant financing
component are measured at the transaction price as a practical expedient.

Financial assets at amortisad cost are subsequently carried at amorlised cost using the effective
interest method less impairment losses, if any. Galn or losses are recognised in profit or loss when

the asset is derecognised, modified, or impaired.

The Company’s financial assats under this classification includa loans receivable, trade and other
receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

The Group's financial assets under this classification include loans receivable, trade and other
receivables and cash and cash equivalents.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Financial instruments - continued
Impairment of financial assels

The Company and the Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) on financial
assets that are measured at amortised cost.

ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Company and the Group expects {o receive, discounted at
an approximation of the original effective mnterest rate.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for cradit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12-months {12-month ECL). For those credit
axposuras for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a
loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (lifetime ECL).

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified at initial recognition in accordance with how they are subsaequently
measured as follows:

« financial liabilities at amortised cost; and
» financial liabilities at fair valua through profit or loss.

The Company and the Group's financial liahilities are mainly financial liabilities at amortised cost.
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabllities at amortised cost are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction cost and
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effactive interast method. All interest-ralated
charges under the interest amortisation process are recagnised in profit or loss.

On derecognition, the difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability (or part of a
financial liability) extinguished or transferred to another party and the considsration paid, including
any nan-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, are recognised in profit or loss.

The Company's financial liabilittes under this classification include bonds payable, and trade and
other payables.

The Group's financial liabilities under this classification include bonds payable, interest-bearing loans
and borrowings, lease liability and trade and other payables.

Offselting of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets and (iabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial

position when there is a legally enforceabls right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash in hand, demand deposits and shart-term, highly
liquid investments readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to insignificant risk of
changes in value.

For the purpose of the staternent of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand
and deposits at banks, net of outstanding bank overdrafts

Equity
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly aftributable to the issue of
ordinary shares are recognised as a deduction from equity

Right-of-use assets

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That Is, if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time In exchange
for a consideration.

Recognition

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e the date the
underlying assel is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost. less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives recsived.

Right-of-use assats are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and
the estimated useful lives of the assets. If ownarship of the leased asset transfers to the Group at
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is
calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assats are also subject to

impairment.

Lease itabllity

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term and discounted at the Group’s
incremantal borrowing rate of five percent {5%). The lease payments include fixed payments less
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees, The lease paymenis also include the
exarcise price of a purchase option reasonably cerlain to be exarcised by the Group and payments
of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
{erminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recagnised as
expensaes in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

Leasa payments on shori-term leases (l.e. Ieases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option} and leases of low value assets are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Business combinations

The acquisition mathod of accounting is used to account for business combinations regardiass of
whether equily instruments or other assets are acquired

The consideration transferred is the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred,
equity instruments Issued or liabilities incurred by the acquirer to formar owners of the acquires and
the amount of any non-controiling interest in the acquiree. For each business combination, the non-
controlling interest in the acquiree is measured at either fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All acquisition costs are expensed as incurred to profit or loss.

On the acquisition of a business, the Group assesses the financial assets acquired and habilities
assumed for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic conditions, the Group's operating or accounting policies and other pertinent conditions in
existence at the acquisition-date.

Where the business combination is achieved in stages, the Group remeasures its previously held
equity interest in the acquires at the acquisition-date fair value and the difference betwesn the fair
value and the previous carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at the acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent changes in the falr value of the contingent congideration classified as an asset or
liability is recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration classified as equity is not remsasured
and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The difference between the acquisition-date fair value of assets acquired, liabilities assumed and
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the consideration transferred and
the fair value of any pre-existing investment in the acquiree is recognised as goodwill. it the
consideration transferred and the pre-existing fair value is less than the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired, being a bargain purchase to the acquirer, the difference is recognised as a gain
directly in profit or loss by the acquirer on the acquisition-date, but only after a reassessmant of the
identification and measurement of the net assets acquired, the non-controlling interests in the
acquliree, if any, the consideration transferred and the acquirer's praviously held equity interest in
the acquirer.

Business combinations are initially accounted for on a provisional basis. The acquirer retrospectively
adjusts the provisional amounts recognised and also recognises assets or liabilities during the
measurement period, based on new information obtained about the facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition-date The measuremsnt period ends on either the earlier of (i) 12 months
from the date of the ecquisition or {ii) when the acquirer receives all information possible to determine
the fair value.

Earnings per share

Basic eamings per share

Basic eamnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the owners of the
Company, excluding any costs of servicing equily other than ordinary shares, by the weighted

average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial period, adjusted for bonus
elements in ordinary shares issued during the financial period.

37



THE CONVENIENCE SHOP (HOLDING) PLC
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

4,

SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS AND CRITICAL ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS as adopted by the EU requires
management o make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies
and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses, The direclors have considered
the development, selection and disclosure of the Company’s critical accounting policies and
estimates and the application of these policies and estimates. Estimates and judgements are
continually evaluated and are based on historical and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, except for the matters disclosed below, the accounting
estimates and judgements made in the course of preparing these financial statements are not
difficult, subjective or complex to a degree which would warrant their disclosure in terms of the
requirements of |IAS 1 Presanlation of Financial Statements, except for the matters described below

Business combinations

As discussed in Note 3, the Group accounted for acquisitions in accordance with /FRS 3 Business
Combinrations. The purchase consideration was based on the book value of the asseta and liabilities
of the acquired business. The directors have assassed and agreed that this is representative of the
fair value, hence no adjustment was deemad necessary.

Impairment assessment of infangibla assets with indefinite useful ves

The Group tests annually, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
impairment, whether goodwill and suppliers’ agreements have suffered any impaiment, in
accordance with the accounting palicy stated in Note 3,

The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have besn determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations require the use of assumnptions, including estimated discount rates
based on the current cost of capital and growth rates of the estimated future cash flows.

Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic

Judgement has been exercised in considering the impacls that the Coronavirus {COVID-19)
pandemic has had, or may have, on the company based on known information. This consideration
extends to the nature of the products and services offered, customers, supply chain, staffing and
geographic regions in which the company operates. Other than as addressed in specific notes, the
directors have assessed that there is neither any significant impact upon the financial stalements
nor any significant uncertainties with respect to events or conditions which may impact the company
unfavourably as at the reporting date or subsequently as a result of the Coronavirus (COVID-18)
pandemic.
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5, REVENUE

Group Company
01.01.2020 26.07.2018 01.01.2020 26.07.2018
to fo to to
31122020 31.12.2019 31122020 31.12.2019
€ € € €
Dividend income - - 461,538 1,076,923
Sale of goods 30,634,996 34,099,084 - -
Franchise incormne 812,865 1,086,156 - -
Management fee income 232,207 811,258 - -
Recharge income 1,030,252 634,593 - -
Rebate income 103,441 1,631,813 - -
Commission income 202,435 423,143 - -
32,916,195 30 565,047 461,638 1,076,923

6. OPERATING PROFIT

The operating profit is stated after charging:

Group Company
01.01.2020 26.07.2018 01.01.2020 26.07.2018
to to to to
31122020 31.12.2019 31122020 31.12.2019
€ € € €
Staff costs (Note 7) 3,760,962 4,213,555 -
Directors' remuneration 252,317 282,374 2287 22,000
Auditors’ remuneration 27,000 26,300 8,000 8.000
Tax compliance services 8,136 3,400 600 600
Depraciation of property, plant and
equipment (Note 12) 554,996 645,878 - e
Depreciation of right of use asset
(Note 14) 800,249 796,386 - -
Amortisation of intangible assels
(Roth 13} 9211 77013 - .

7. STAFF COSTS

Staff costs incurred during the year/period were as follows:

Group
01.01.2020 26.07.2018
to to
31122020 31.12.2019
€ €
Salaries and wages 3,538,102 3,950,056
Sccial security costs 205,382 256,211
Maternity fund contribution 6,488 8,288

3,780,962 4,213,555
The average number of persons empioyed by the Group during the year/period was 198 (2019: 224
employees).
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8. OTHER INCOME

Group
01.01.2020 26.07.2018
to to
31.12.2020 31122019
€ €
Commission income 91,349 86,573
Rental income 231,775 101,000
Recharges - 260
Government grants 10,918 =
Other income 295,821 139,204
629,860 327,037
9. FINANCE COSTS
Group Company
01.01.2020 26.07.2018 01.01.2020 26.07.2018
to to to to
31122020 31.12.2019 31.122020 31.12.2019
€ € € €
Interest expense an bonds payable
N
(Note 21) 260,693 188,233 260,613 188,233
Interest expense on bank loan
(Nole 21} 36,245 26,737 ; ;
Interest expense on lease lability
{Note 14) 475,435 462,496 - -
762,193 677,466 250,613 188,233
10. FINANCE INCOME
Group Company
01.01.2020 26.07.2018 01.01.2020 26.07.2018
to to to to
31.12.2020 31.12.2019 31.92.2020 31.12.2018
€ € € €
Interest income from bank 821 813 S -
Interest income from loans receivable
(Note 17) . - 318,500 244,329
821 813 318,500 244,329
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11. TAX
The tax charged to profit or loss comprised of the following:
Group Company
01.01.2020 26.07.2018 01.01.2020 26.07.2018
to to to o
31.12,2020  31.12.2019 31.12.2020 31.12.2019
€ € € €
Current tax charge 456,969 988,202 186,333 396,557
Deferred tax credit 4¢,248 (19,107) - -
506,205 969,095 185,333 396,557

The tax on the Company’s and the Group's profit differs from the theoretical tax charge that would
arise using the applicable tax rate in Malta of 35% as follows:

Group Company
01.01.2020 26.07.2018 01.01.2020 26 07.2018
to to to to
31.12.2020 31.12.2018 31122020 31.12.2019
€ € € €
Profit before tax 1,043,772 1,696,563 467,946 1,086,821
Theoretical tax credit at 35% 365,320 593,797 183,781 380,387
Disallowed formation expenses - 16,189 - 16,170
Non-deduclible expenses 183,366 325,924 21,853 -
Income at different tax rate {64) {63) - -
Difference between tax base and
carrying amounts of property, plant
and equipment (3,755) 4,909 . .
Absorbed tax losses (960) (6,769) - -
Absorbed capital allowances {61,708) {11,530) - -
Unabsorbed capital allowances 22,083 - - -
Unutilised tax losses 1,923 46,658 - =
506,205 969,095 185,333 398,557

As atl 31 December 2020, the Group had a potential deferred tax asset of €166,220 (2019: €202,593)
emanating from unabsorbed capital allowances, unutilised tax losses and differences in the carrying
amount and tax base of fixed assels. This amount has not been recognised in the statement of
financial position since the directors do not consider it prudent to recognise such asset,
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THE CONVENIENCE SHOP (HOLDING) PLC
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

13.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill Suppliers Key Total

THE GROUP agreements mongy
€ € €

Cost
Assets acquired on
business combination 5,587,244 3,099,647 280,334 8,947,225
Additions - - 117,616 _ 117616
Balance at
31 December 2019 5,667,244 3,099,647 397,950 9,064,844
Accumulated
amortisation
Assets acquired on - - {14,546) (14,548)
business combination
Amortisation C . (77.013) (77.013)
Balance at
31 December 2019 - - {91,659) (91,559)
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2019 5,567,244 3,099,647 306,391 8,973,282

Business combinations

On 1 September 2018, the Company acquired the equity interests of Dally Retail Challenges Limited
("DRC") (80%), Aynic & Co. Limited (50%), Seafront Express Limited (50%), GBake Manufacturing
Limited (100%) and GBake Retail Limited (100%). The cost of acquisition exceeded the fair value of
the subsidiaries and associates acquired resulting in a loss of €346,279 and s presented in the profit
or loss.

As part of the same lransaction and overall restructuring, The Convenience Shop Limited and The
Convenience Shop {Management) Limited, also acquired the business operalions of companies
engaged in the operation of various retail outlets within the secter of retail selling of grocery and
generai consumar and household items under the brand "The Convenience Shop". This is pursuant
to the Company's acquisition and management of the “The Convanlence Shop” retail outiets. The
total consideration paid for these acquisitions amounted to €11,813,974.

The bock value of the assets and liabilities acquired was deemed by the directors to be
representative of the fair value. Hence, there were no fair value adjustments. The non-cantrolling
interest as at acquisition date amounts to €77,035 which is deemad fo be representative of ils fair
value,

Suppliers’ agreements were identified by the directors as intangible assets acquired via business
combination. The suppliers’ agreements were valued as a group of assets in view that the nature of
the suppliers’ chain randers economies of scale fundamental to the business model. The value of
these essets has baen estimated based on directly attributable cash flows.
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THE CONVENIENCE SHOP (HOLDING) PLC

Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS - continued

Details of the acquisition are as follows.

Cash

Trade and other receivables
Inventories

Loans receivable

Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment
Trade and other payables
Loans payable

Goodwill

Right of use assst

Lease liabiities

Net assets acquired
Suppliers' agreements
Goodwill

Purchase consideration

THE COMPANY

Cost

As at 01 January 2020
Additions

Balance at

31 December 2020

Accumulated amortisation
As at 01 January 2020
Amortisation

Balance at
31 December 2020

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2020

Falr value
2020 2019
€ €
9,800 61,200
40,969 328,485
146,442 1,142,904
- 93,909
173,333 200,334
202,582 1,821,193
(61,804) (289,992)
- (208,960}
113,408 -
656,233 -
{604,525) -
676,438 3,147,083
- 3,099,647
. - 5,567 244
676,438 11,813,974
Intellectual
property
€
4,000,000
4,000,000
4,000,000

On 29 December 2020, the Company entered into an agreement with JIN Limited for the transfer
of The Convenience Shop trademark held by the latter under its name for a consideration of

€4,000,000.




THE CONVENIENCE SHOP (HOLDING) PLC
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 Decembar 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
14. RIGHT OF USE ASSETS

The Group leases several properties which it operates as setail outiets. The terms of the leases range
from 2 to 18 years commencing on 1 September 2019. Lease payments are subject to escalations.

The Group also has leases which it uses as a warehouse and an office space. The term of the lease
is 8 years and 11 months commencing on 1 September 2018. Lease payments are subject to
escalation of 3% every four years starting on 1 May 2019.

During the period, the Group also entered into a lease agresment for the use of a site measuring
1,400 square metres through temporary emphyteusis. The lease has a term of 65 years and lease
payments are subject to escalation of 5% every 5 years.

THE GROUP Total
€

Cost

Initial application of IFRS 16 7.961,515

Additions .

Balance at 31 December 2019 7,861,615

Accumulated depreciation
As at 01 January 2019 -

Depraciatian {786,386)
Balance at 31 December 2020 {796,386)
Carrying amount

At 31 December 2018 7,165,129
Cost

As at 01 January 2020 7.981,515
Assets acquired on business combination 656,233
Additions 2,632,415
Release of terminated lease {200,503)
Balance at 31 December 2020 11,049,680
Accumulated depreciation

As at 01 January 2020 (796,388)
Depreciation (800,249)
Release of terminated lease 20,506
Balance at 31 December 2020 {1,676,129)
Carrying amount

At 31 December 2020 9,473,831
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THE CONVENIENCE SHOP (HOLDING) PLC
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued

16. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

Company
2020 2020 2019
% € €
shareholding
At cost:
The Convenience Shop Limited (Note i) 100 100,000 100,000
The Convenience Shop for Puttinu Cares Limited
{Note i} 99 1,199 1,199
The Convenience Shop Management Limited
{Note iii) 100 1,200 1,200
Gbake Retail Limited {Note iv) 100 1,973 1,973
Gbake Manufacturing Limited (Note v) 100 114,477 114,477
Daily Relail Challenges (Note vi} 80 260 980
Aynic & Co Limited {Note vii) 100 67,988

287,797 219,809

During the year, the Company held the following investments:

i

vi.

vii.

1,200 ordinary shares with a nominal value of €1 each for a total consideration of €1,200,
Ouring the financial period ended 31 December 2019, as part of the restructuring plan, the
Company loaned tha subsidiary the amount of €98,800. During the same period, the same
amount was capitalised as a capital contribution.

1,199 ordinary shares with a nominal value of €1 each for a total consideration of €1,199.
1.200 ordinary shares with a nominal value of €1 each for a total consideration of €1,200.

700 ordinary shares with a nominal value of €1 each for a total consideration of €1,969. During
the financlal period ended 31 Dacember 2019, the Company acquired an additional 700
ordinary shares in the subsidiary for a tofal consideration of €4.

40,700 ordinary shares with a nominal value of €1 each for a tolal consideration of €114,473,
During the financial period ended 31 December 2019, the Company acquired an additional
40,700 ordinary shares in tha subsidiary for a total consideration of €4.

960 ordinary shares with a nominal value of €1 each for a total consideration of €980.

During the period ended 31 December 2019, the company held 600 ordinary A shares with a
nominal value of €1 each for a (otal consideration of €1,688 by vitue of a share transfer
agreement. These shares were classified as investrment in associates (Note 16). During the
financial year ended 31 December 2020 the Company increased the number of shares held
by 49,400 ordinary A shares with a nominal value of €1 for a total consideration of €49,400,
through the capitalization of borrowings. During the same year, the Company purchased the
50,000 shares, held by the other shargholder, with a nominal value of €1 for a total
consideration of €16,800 by virtue of a share transfer agreement.




THE CONVENIENCE SHOP (HOLDING) PLC
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ~ continued
15. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES - continued

The following summarizes the financial position and performance of the Company's subsidiaries as at and
for the period/year ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020:

31 Decembar 2020

Limited

Road, Zebbug ZBG 5017,
Malta

Subsidiaries Registered Office Capital and Profit/{loss)
reserves for the year
The Convenience Shop Marant Food Products, Mdina 208,717 {24,430)
Limited Road, Zebbug ZBG 5017,
Malita
The Convenience Shop for Marant Food Products, Mdina (21,150) 5,038
Puttinu Cares Limited Road, Zebbug ZBG 98017,
Malta
The Conveniencse Shop Marant Food Products, Mdina 883,892 625,327
{Management) Limited Road, Zebbug ZBG 8017,
Malta
Gbake Retall Limited Marant Food Products, Mdina (60,945) 3,015
Road, Zebbug ZBG 9017,
Malta
Gbake Manufacturing Limited Marant Foed Products, Mdina 26,803 29,364
Road, Zebbug Z8G 9017,
Maita
Daily Retail Challenges Marant Food Products, Mdina (333,493) {824)
Limited Road, Zebbug ZBG 5017,
Malta
Aynic & Co. Limited Marant Food Products, Mdina (158,422) {76,442)
Road, Zebbug ZBG 9017,
Maita
31 December 2019
Subsidiaries Registered Office Capital and Profit/{loas}
resaerves for the period
The Convenience Shop Marant Food Products, Mdina 283,147 533,147
Limited Road, Zebbug ZBG 9017,
Malta
The Convenience Shop for Marant Food Products, Mdina {26,188) (27.,388)
Puttinu Cares Limited Road, Zebbug ZBG 9017,
Maita
The Convenience Shop Marant Food Products, Mdina 508,565 867,365
{Management) Limited Road, Zebbug Z8BG 5017,
Matta
Gbake Retail Limited Marant Food Products, Mdina {63.960) 19,743
Road, Zebbug ZBG 9017,
Malta
Gbake Manufacturing Limited Marant Food Products, Mdina (2,561) {18,833)
Road, Zebbug ZBG 9017,
Malta
Daily Retail Chalienges Marant Food Products, Mdina (332,669) (116,834)
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THE CONVENIENCE SHOP (HOLDING) PL.C
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued
16. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

Group Company
2020 2020 2019 2020 2020 2019
% %
shareholding € € sharsholding € €
At cost:
Seafront Express
Limited (Note i) 50 1888 1688
Aynic & Co. Limited
{Note i) 50 - 1,688
At equity method:
GNJ Company Limited
(Note iii) 80 5000 5000 - -
GNG Manufacturing Ltd
{Note iv) 50 600 600 - -
5,600 5,800 1,688 3,378

During the period ended 31 December 2019, the Company acquired the following:

i 600 ordinary A shares with a nominal value of €1 erch for a total consideration of €1,688 by
virtue of a share transfer agreement. The Campany exsrcises contral over the associate.

i 600 ordinary A shares with a nominal value of €1 each for a total consideration of €1,588 by
virtue of a share transfer agreement. During the financial year ended 31 December 2020, Aynic
& Co. Limited became futly owned by the Company {(Note 15).
The Group through the acquisition of Gbake Manufacturing Limited indirectly owns the following:
i, 5,000 ordinary shares with a nominal value of €1 each
iv. 600 ordinary shares with a nominal value of €1 each

in both cases, the direclors believe that the Group has significant influence but no control over the
investees. Consequently, thase are accounted for under the equity method as follows;

Group
2020 2019
€ €
Additions on business combination - 5,600

Share of losses for the period

(6.600)
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THE CONVENIENCE SHOP (HOLDING) PLC
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

16.

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES - continued

The following summarizes the financial position and performance of the Company's assoclates as at and

for the period/year ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020:

31 December 2020

Associates

Seafront Express Limited

GNJ Company Limited

GNG Manufacturing Ltd (Note i)

31 December 2019

Assoclates

Seafront Express Limited

Aynic & Co. Limited

GNJ Company Limited

GNG Manutactusing Ltd (Note i}

Registered Office

Marant Food Producets, Mdina
Road, Zebbug ZBG 8017,
Malta

Marant Food Products, Mdina
Road, Zebbug ZBG 98017,
Maita

37, Triq Dun Mikiel Xerri,
Attard, Malta

Reagistered Office

Marant Food Products, Mdina
Road, Zebbug ZBG 9017,
Malta

Marant Food Products, Mdina
Road, Zebbug ZBG 9017,
Malta

Marant Food Products, Mdina
Road, Zebbug ZBG 9017,
Malta

37, Trigg Dun Mikie! Xerri,
Attard, Malta

Capital and
reserves
(63,426)
(336,455}

60,958

Capital and
resarves
(57,933}
{180,780)

(247,837)

68,038

Profit/{(loss)
for the year
{5,493)

(88,618)

Profit/{loss)
for the period
(1.826)
(136.141)

(257.837)

121,211

The capital and reserves of GNG Manufacturing Ltd are based on the statement of affairs as

at 01 November 2018.
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THE CONVENIENCE SHOP (HOLDING) PLC
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ~ continued
17. LOANS RECEIVABLE

Company
2020 2019
€ €

Loan to subsidiary 4,460,317 4,267,318

On 27 March 2019, the Company entered into a loan facility agreement with The Convenience Shep
Limited through which the balance of €4,900,000 was made available to the lalter. An interast of
6.5% par annum shall accrue on a daily basis on the entire amount of the Loan Facility and shall be
repayable annually in arrears. The utilised amounts shall be repayable on the expiration of the loan
facility period i.e. the maturity date of the issued bond or the early redemption date if this option is
exercisad by the lender. The interest income during the period amounted to €318,500 (2019:
€244,329).

18. INVENTORIES

Group
2020 2019
€ €
Fast moving consumer goods 2,470,200 1,847,120
19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019
€ € € €
Trade receivables 816,298 423,804 -
Amounts owed by subsidiaries 3,872 - 3,249,744 68,744
Prepayments 73,826 62,983 926 -
VAT receivable 210,289 116,998 3,782 26,099
Other receivables 48,111 820,398 - -
Term deposit 408,362 107,589 - -
Deposits 160,687 2,432 - -
Rebates recelvable 1,185,137 806,358 - -
Dividends receivable - - 100,000 700,000
Loans to third parties - 13,353 - -
Amounts owed by related parties 482,063 148,578 - -
Amounts owed by an associate 77,418 77418 - -
Accrued income 217,310 225000 - -
3,363,372 2,804,911 3,354 451 794,843

The amounts owed by subsidiaries, related parties and an associate are unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed repayment date.




THE CONVENIENCE SHOP (HOLDING) PLC
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
20. SHARE CAPITAL

Group and Company
2020 2019
€ €
Authorised
70,000 (2019: 50,000) ordinary shares of €1 each 70,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid up
70,000 (2019: 50,000) ordinary shares of €1 each 70,000 50,000
21. INTEREST- BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS
Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
€ € € €
Non-current
Bank loan {Note i) 849,980 589,127 - -
Bonds payable (Note iii) 4,744,719 4,744,206 4,744,719 4,744,206
5,694,899 5,333,333 4,744,719 4,744 206
Current
Bank loan (Note i) 202,490 125,125 - -
Loans payable 1o ultimate
shareholders {Note i) - 3,886,443 - -
Bonds payable (Note i) 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000

452,490 4,261,568 250,000 280,000

(i) The Group has the following bank loans.
The Convenience Shop Limited has the following banking facilities.

0] €62,044 which is subject to 4.25% Interest and is to be repaid by no later than 30
April 2024;

(ii) €189,343 which is subject to 5.40% interest and is to be repaid by no later than 31
May 2031;

(%) €750,000 which is subject to 3.56% and is to be rapaid over a period of 10 years. As
at 31 December 2020 €274,740 has been utilised; and

(iv) €721 which is subject to 5.40% interest and is to be repaid by no later 30 January
2021

The above faciiities are secured by a ganeral hypothec over the Company's assets.

Aynic & Co. Limited has a banking facility of €500,000 which is sacured by a general
hypothec over the Company’s assets and by general and special hypothacs over assets of
a shareholder and third parties. The rate of interest during the period was 3.50% and ia to
be repaid by no later than 19 July 2026.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

21,

22.

23,

INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS - continued

(i)

(i)

Gbake Manufacturing Limited has a banking facility of €250,000 which is secured by a
general hypothec of €250,000. The rate of interest during the pariod was 4.27% and is to be
repaid by no later than 21 March 2024,

Gbake Retail Limlted has a banking facility of €100,000 which is secured by a pledge on
bank balances amounting to €40,000. The rale of interest during the period was 4. 73% and
is to be repaid by no later than 21 March 2024,

During the year ended 31 Dacember 2020 the amount of €2,207,924 was capitalised into
20,000 ordinary shares of the Company having a nominal value of €1 and at a share
premium. The remaining amount was settied during the year, except for €300,000 that are
still owed to the uitimate shareholders (Note 24).

The Convenience Shop (Holding} plc issusd bonds for an aggregate amount of €5,000,000
during the pariod ended 31 December 2019. The Bonds are subject to interest at the rate of
5% per annum and are repayable in full upon maturity on 8™ March 2028 unless praviously
re-purchased and cancelled, or the Company exercises the option to redeem all or any part
of the Bonds at their nominal value prior to the Redemption Date, between 8™ March 2026

and 8" March 2029.

DIVIDENDS
Group & Company
2020 2019
€ €
Gross of income tax
Ordinary shares dividend 1,384,615 -
Net of income tax
Ordinary shares dividend 900,000 -
Net dividend per share 12,86
LEASE LIABILITIES
Group
2020 2019
€ €
Gross lease payments
Due after more than five years 9,374,049 7088602
Due after one year but within five years 4,490,611 3,384,873
Due within one year 1,090,411 812,651

14,955,071 11,286,228

Discounts (4,810,645) (3 829,785)

10,044,628 7,456,441
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23. LEASE LIABILITIES ~ continued

The carrying amount of lease liability recognized during the year Is as follows

Group

2020 2019
€ €

Opening balance 7,456,441
Additions 3,288,649 7,961,514
Release of terminated lease (191,504) -
Intarest 475,435 462 496
Lease payments {964,485) (967,569)

70,044,526 7,456 da1_

The following are the amounts recognized in profit or loss relating to leases:

Group
2020 2019
€ €
Interest expense 476,436 462,496
Depreciation expense 800,249 796,386

1,276,684 1,258 882

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Group Company

2020 2018 2020 2019

€ € € €

Trade payables — third parties 5,873,681 3,057,855 10,373 -
Trade payables - related parties 435,366 321.054 - -
Amounts owed to related parties (i} 5,623,019 1,041,815 4,497 585 -
Amounts owed to shareholders () 300,000 - 300,000 -
VAT payables 295,312 25743 - -
Accruals 663,658 944,969 13,981 38,271
Other payables €06,270 824,347 20,500 -

13,497,208 7,115,783 4,842419 38,271

The amounts owed to relaled parties and ullimate beneficial owners are unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed date of repayment.
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25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and in banks, net of overdrawn bank balances.

Cash and cash equivalents included in the statement of cash flow reconcile to the amounts shown
in the statement of financial position as foliows:

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
€ € € €
Cash in hand 157,853 257,368 - -
Cash at bank 907,273 1,786,246 105,865 507,028
Overdrawn bank balances = (224.180) = =
1,066,126  1,819.424 105,865 507,029

26. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The Group
Balance at Proceeds Repayments Non-cash Capitalisation Balance at
26.07.2018 adjustment ofbond 34.12.2019
issuance
costs
€ € € € €
Issuance of share
capital - 50,000 - - - 50,000
Proceads from
cash advances
from Ultimate
Bensficiary owner - 3,886,443 - - - 3,886,443
Proceeds from
interest-bearing - 714,282 - - - 714,252
loan
Bonds payable - 5,000,000 - - {194.027) 4805973
Payment of lsase
liability 7,981,515 - (967,570) 462496 - 7456441
7,861,515 5850695 967 570 462 406 194,027) 16913108




THE CONVENIENCE SHOP (HOLDING) PLC
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2020

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued

26. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES -
continued

The Group
Balance at Proceeds Repayments MNon-cash CapHalisation Balance at
01.01.2020 adjustment ofbond 31.12.2020
issuance
costs
€ € € € €
Issuance of ghare 50,000 2,207,924 - - - 2257924
capital
Proceeds from
cash advances
from Ultimate 3.886,443 - {3,586,443) - - 300,000
Beneficiary owner
Proceeds from
interest-bearing
loan 714,252 477,238 {139,021) - - 1,052,469
Bonds payable 4,805,973 (250,000) 250,513 - 4,994,719
Payment of lease
liahility 7.456 441 - {975,495} 1,612,590 - 10,044,525
16,913,109 2685162 (4,950,958} 1,863,103 - 18649638
The Company
Balance at Proceads Advances Non-cash Cspitalisation Balance at
26.07.2018 ad]ustment ofbond 31.12.2019
issuance
costs
€ € € € € €
Issuance of share
capital - 50,000 - - 50,000
Loan issued to
subsidiary - - {4.511.847) 244 329 - (4,267.318)
Bonds payable - 5,000,000 - (194,027) 4,805,873

5,050,000 __ (4.511,647) 244,329 (194,027) 588,655
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26, RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES -
continued

Tha Company
Balance at  Proceeds Advances Non-cash Capitalisation Balance at
01.01.2020 adjustment of bond 31.12.2020
Issuance
costs
€ € € € € €
Issuance of share 50,000 2,207,924 - - - 2,257,924
capital
Loan issued to (4.267.318) - (192,998} - - (4,480,317)
subsidiary
Bonds payable 4,805,973 {250,000) 250,513 - 4994718

688,655 2207,924  (442,999) 250,513

- 2,603,580

27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company has related party relationships with companies aver which there exists common
control and directors exercise common control. Transaclions are carried oul with related parties on
a regular basis and in the ordinary course of the business.

Group
01.01.2020 26.07.2018
to to
31.12.2020 31.12.2019
€ €
Purchase of goods 1,534,342 2,057,445
Purchase of Intellectual
Property 4,000,000 -
Recharge income - 651
Commission income 101,284 145,749
Amounts owed by related parties 455,017 225996
Amounts owed to related
parties 5,539,380 1,041,815
Borrowings from ultimate beneficial owners 300,000 3,888,443
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27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - continued

Transaclions within the Group

During the year under review, The Convenience Shop Limited extended funds to various group
companies for working capital purposes amounting to €1,217,379 (2019: €744,952).

Algso, The Convenience Shop (Management) Limited charged the group of companies for the
folowing management fee and accounting fee services amounting to €649,599 (2019: €788,508)
and €36,000 (2019: €37,200), respectively.

Company
01.01.2020 26.07.2018
to to

31.12,2020 31 .12.2012

Dividend incormne 461,538 1,076,923
interest income 318,500 244,328
Amounts owed by subsidiaries 3,349,744 768,744
Loans receivable 4,460,317 4,267,318

The outstanding amounts arising from these transactions are disc'osed in Notes 17, 19 and 24 to
the financial statements.

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Tha Company's directors are responsible for managing the risks faced by the Group. This
responsibility includes identifying, analysing, setting the appropriate risk limits and controls, and
monitoring adherence to such limits and controls.

At period end, the Company's financial assets are comprised of financial assets at amorised cost
namely loans receivable, trade and other raceivables and cash and cash equivalents while the
Group’s financial assete at amortised cost comprise of loans receivables, trade and cther
receivables and cash and cash equivalants. At period end, there were no off-balance sheet financial
assets.
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28.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

At pariod end, the Company financial liabilities are comprised of financial liabilities at amortised cost
namely bonds payable and trade and other payables while the Group’s financial liabilities at
amortised cost include bonds payable, interest-bearing loans and borrowings, lease liability and
trade and other payables. At period end, thera were no off-balance sheet financial liabilities except
as disclosed in Note 21 to the financial statements.

The Company and the Group's financlal instruments are exposed to market, credit and liquidity risks

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices (a.g. foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
equity prices) will affect the Company and the Group's income or the valus of its holdings of financial
instruments. The Company and the Group is exposed mainly to changes in interest rates.

Interost rale risk

The risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The directors manage interest rate risk by minimising variable-rate
long-term borrowings.

The Group is exposed to changes in market interast rates through bank borrowings at variable
interest rates. The Company’s bonds payable are at fixed interest rates.

The Group's bank loans amounting to €1,052,470 (2019. €714,252) are principal and interest
payment loans. An official increase/decrease in inlerest rates of 100 basis points would have an
adverse/favourable effect on profit before tax of €7,143 per annum,

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge its obligation
to the Company or the Group.

Financial assels which potentially subject the Company and the Group to concentrations of credit
risk consist of loans receivable, trade receivables and cash in banks. The maximum exposure to
credit risk at the reporting date in respect of the recognised financial assets is the carrying amount
disclosed in the statement of financial position and notes to the financial statements.

Cash at Bank

The credit risk relating to cash in banks is considered to be low in view of management's policy of
placing it in raputable financist institutions.

Trade receivables
The Group's risk is managed through assessing the credit quality of its customers by taking into
account the financial position, past experience and other factors and incorporating forward looking

information such as economic conditions where the debtors operate and other macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date for these assets using the simplified
approach to measure the allowance ECL on trade receivables. The Company determines the
allowanca for ECL by using a provision matrix as they possess shared credit risk characteristics,
estimated based on historical credit loss experience based on the past due stalus of the debtors,
adjusted as appropriate to reflect current conditions and estimates of future economic conditions.

Loans receivable

The Group has adopled a 12-month ECL method to its loan receivable. As at 31 December 2019,
the Board of Directors consider the probability of default to be zero given management's assassment
of the counterparty’s ability to meet its contractual abligations. Thus, no loss allowance has been
racognised based on 12-month expected credit losses

Credit risk - continued

The following table summarises the maximum exposure to credit risk ariging from the Company's
and the Group's financial assets:

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
€ € € €
Cash in banks 907,273 1.562,056 105,865 507.029
Trade receivables 816,299 423,804

4,480,317 4,267,318

4,566,182 4774347

Loans recaivable

rs

— 1723572 1985860
Coliateral

The Company and the Group do not hold any collateral,

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises [n the general funding of the Graup's activities and in the management of
positions. It includes the risk that obligations cannot be met as and when they fall due.

The directors manage liquiddy risk by maintaining adeguate cash reserves endior available
borrowing facilities by continuously monitoring actual and forecast cash flows as well as the maturity
profiles of financial liabilities.

The following table analyses the undiscounted contractual cash flows arising from the Group's and
Company's financial liabilities.

Group
Within 12 Between1 More than 5
months toSyears years Total
Bonds payable {Note 21) 250,000 1,000,000 3,744,719 4,994,719
Bank loan (Note 21) 202,480 640,982 208,998 1,052,470

452,490 1,640,982 3,953,117 8,047,189

&1
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Company
Within 12 Between1 More than 5
months to 5 years years Total
Bonds payable (Note 21) 250,000 1,000,000 3,744,719 4,954,719

During the period under review the Group entered into a number of lease arrangements resulting
in an outstanding lease liabllity of €10,044,526 out of which €598,083 is repayable within the year

Falr value of financial instruments

As &t period end, the carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables
and payables reflected in the financial statements are reasoneble estimates of fair value in view of
the nature of these instruments or the relatively short period of time between the originalion of the
instruments and their expected realisation. The fair value of non-current receivables and payables
Is not different from its carrying amount.

Timing of cash flows

The presentation of the financial assets and liabilities listed above under the current and non-current
headings within the statement of financial position is intended to indicate the timing in which cash
flows will arise.

Capital risk management

The capital structure of the Company and the Group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings
disclosed in Note 21, and equity attributable to equity holders, comprsing issued share capital and
retained earnings as disclosed in Nole 20 lo these financial statements and in the statement of
changes in equity.

The Company and the Group manages ils capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance.

29. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

The impact of the Coronavirus {COVID-19) pandemic is ongoing. Business in the tourism sector
{Northern and Northern harbour region) was adversely impacted with the vast majority of these stores
seeing a reduction in customer footfall due to the decline in tourism as well as the sudden departure of
expats. Nonetheless, the Company opened 5 new outlets and revenue being generated from these
oullets is managing to cushion the impact of COVID-19 whilst paving the way for recovery. The Directors
will continue te monitor and assess the situation on an on-going basis given hat it is rapidly developing
and is dependent on measures imposed by the Maltese Government, such as maintaining social
distancing requirements, quarantine, travel restrictions and any economic stimulus that may be
provided.
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